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COURT HOUSE & LOCK UP 
Corner of Main Street and Esplanade
Built by William Vaughan & Co in 1860 and
extended in 1862, this is the oldest public building
in Mornington and initially served the entire 
Peninsula. It remained the Mornington Court of
Petty Sessions until 1988.
From the earliest years, cases typically involved 
drunkenness, larceny and by-laws and later 
motoring offences.
The Lock-Up served as a jail from 1862 
until 1882. Subsequently it was used 
principally for holding people in custody 
overnight or during court sessions.
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Duncan Forrester

Gazette notice

1922
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MORNINGTON 
COFFEE 
PALACE
28 – 30 Main Street
Built in the late 1800s, 
it was owned by Mr and Mrs 
Robertson and run as a cafe and small boarding 
house. At one stage, it was called Clifton House. 
By the start of the First World War it had been 
converted into the town’s newsagency, carrying 
stationery, books, fancy goods, toys, cottons & silks. 
It also became an agency for gramophone records 
in the 1920s. 
The Wood family ran it together with a subscription 
library until the Penders took over in 1924. After the 
newsagency moved further up Main Street in the 
early 1950s the building continued to house various 
retail businesses.
The upper storey windows and parapet are
original but the ground fl oor façade has been 
altered over time.

Main St with Coffee Palace in 1930s

N 

rs

When it was a funeral parlor.  
Note the picket fence of the school
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COMMERCIAL BANK 
62 Main Street
Designed in 
the Italian 
Renaissance 
style by 
Melbourne 
architect George 
Jobbins, it was 
built c1890, for 
the Commercial 
Bank of 
Australasia, as 
revealed by the 
signage above 
the entrance. 
For some years 
it served as a boarding house before being taken 
over by the Colonial Bank of Australia around 
1910 when they moved from their inadequate 
premises opposite. 
The building has been modifi ed over the years and 
no longer has its original parapet or lower windows. 
The upper fl oor was the Manager’s residence until 
1970. The high- ceilinged ground fl oor was the 
banking chamber. 
It remained a branch of the Colonial Bank of 
Australia until a merger with the National Bank of 
Australasia in 
1918. It was the 
Mornington branch 
of the National 
Bank until 1986 
when this was 
moved to
107 Main Street.

3

Colonial Bank c1919

The Bank on the right
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BLAKE STREET & CORNER 
Blake Street connected the Railway Station to Main 
Street when the railway came to Mornington in 1889. 
From the early 1900s there was a store on the corner of 
Railway Grove offering real estate and cab services. Lat-
er the Misses Beattie offered refreshments and a library. 
A Railway waiting room for ladies was also in Blake 

Street. On the opposite side was 
a solicitor’s offi ce, a jeweler and 
a bakehouse which supplied the 
cake shop on Main Street. There 
was a bulk goods and loading 
area for the grocery store on the 
corner of Main Street.

On the north side intersecting 
Main Street the present group of 
shops was built in 1931/2; Wilson 
& Livock grocers occupied both 
corners when they relocated 
their drapery, haberdashery and 
apparel departments, operating 
there until the 1950s. Originally, 
No. 66 was a stand-alone 
building dating back to c1900 as 
an estate agency. The entrance 
and interior survive intact.

The corner shop still has the 
original pressed metal ceiling 
under the verandah and a 
leadlight glass frieze. 

Mornington Railway Station

Butler Real Estate No. 66

Passengers leaving the station
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Butler’s Real Estate.  
Doorway and step can still be seen
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RAILWAY STORE 
70 Main Street
Built in 1916 by local architect Leonard Flannagan, 
The Peninsula Post described this new general 
store as “one of the most noteworthy buildings 
erected in Mornington for some years”. It was 
called The Railway Store - the station was at the 
end of Blake Street. Wilson took over the business 
from J. Hall in1922. 
In the late 1930s 
Wilson and Livock’s 
drapery department 
was transferred into 
the store on the 
opposite corner of 
Blake Street to allow 
the grocery section to 
be enlarged. This was 
Mornington’s main 
department store 
in the 1900s. It was 
sold to Crofts grocery 
chain in the early 
1950s. The drapery 
business lapsed at 
the end of its lease. 

5

Halls Railway Store

c. 1916 just after it was built
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Wilson and Livock’s staff



Mornington & District Historical Society

Heritage Walk

RAILWAY STORE 
70 Main Street
Built in 1916 by local architect Leonard Flannagan, 
The Peninsula Post described this new general 
store as “one of the most noteworthy buildings 
erected in Mornington for some years”. It was 
called The Railway Store - the station was at the 
end of Blake Street. Wilson took over the business 
from J. Hall in1922. 
In the late 1930s 
Wilson and Livock’s 
drapery department 
was transferred into 
the store on the 
opposite corner of 
Blake Street to allow 
the grocery section to 
be enlarged. This was 
Mornington’s main 
department store 
in the 1900s. It was 
sold to Crofts grocery 
chain in the early 
1950s. The drapery 
business lapsed at 
the end of its lease. 

5

Halls Railway Store

As you travel 
along the street to 
the Hotel
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THE GRAND HOTEL 124 Main Street

Built in 1889, this building began as the Grand Coffee 
Palace, one of many such establishments encouraged 
by the Temperance Movement. The architect was 
William Pitt who had designed the Windsor Hotel 
in Melbourne. The original building had three bays 
beneath a central tower and steeple with an arched 
carriageway to Swift’s stables behind. 
Cornelius Crowley was the fi rst owner. He also owned 
the Cricketer’s Arms Hotel next door. This was built 
in 1868 with a decorative parapet of fi nials and urns. 
The liquor licence was transferred in the early 1890s 
from the Arms to the Coffee Palace which was then 
renamed the Grand Hotel. The Cricketer’s Arms 
building then became a car hire and coach depot 
before being replaced by a furniture store in the late 
1940s and then various businesses over the years.
The Grand was expanded to its current size in 1919. 
The tower has always been a landmark feature in 
the town. The current 
design, constructed 
in 1987, is the third. 
The building retains 
its original distinctive 
French Renaissance 
revival style roof and 
some internal features. 

6

 1890s.  Note the barber’s shop on right
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Another view - note the Cricketer’s Arms Hotel 
on the left
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Tanti Hotel - rebuilt many times
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Taylor and Ritchie’s motor garage



Mornington & District Historical Society
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MAIN STREET SOUTH 
The southern end of Main Street beyond Barkly Street 
was sparsely populated until the 1970s. There was 
one substantial general business selling groceries 
and drapery on Vale Street corner in the 1920s 
(Fosters then Gaults). Little’s grocery operated on the 
western side near Barkly 
Street corner from 1928 -40. 
On the eastern corner 
of Barkly Street was the 
major timber and hardware 
business established by 
builder and early resident 
William Grover. His son 
Joseph, builder and 
undertaker, occupied an 
adjacent property in Barkly 
Street. These businesses 
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Mornington Chamber of  Commerce

Main St Mornington

OLD FIRE STATION 
137 Main Street
The Mornington Urban Fire Brigade was formed at 
a meeting in the Mechanics Hall in 1917 and the fi re 
station was erected in 1919 by public subscription. 
The building was designed by local architect L.J. 
Flanagan and built by local builder Thomas Green. 
Volunteers were summoned by a bell erected on a 
tower on the left hand side of the building. The design 
of this two-bay building was so well thought of by the 
Country Fire Brigade Board that they adopted it as 
the standard for 
all country fi re 
stations.
It remained the 
premises of 
the Mornington 
Fire Brigade 
until 1969 when 
a new station 
was built near 
Elizabeth Street.

8



Mornington Chamber of  Commerce

Main St Mornington

OLD FIRE STATION 
137 Main Street
The Mornington Urban Fire Brigade was formed at 
a meeting in the Mechanics Hall in 1917 and the fi re 
station was erected in 1919 by public subscription. 
The building was designed by local architect L.J. 
Flanagan and built by local builder Thomas Green. 
Volunteers were summoned by a bell erected on a 
tower on the left hand side of the building. The design 
of this two-bay building was so well thought of by the 
Country Fire Brigade Board that they adopted it as 
the standard for 
all country fi re 
stations.
It remained the 
premises of 
the Mornington 
Fire Brigade 
until 1969 when 
a new station 
was built near 
Elizabeth Street.

8

Mornington Fire Brigade



Mornington Chamber of  Commerce

Main St Mornington

OLD FIRE STATION 
137 Main Street
The Mornington Urban Fire Brigade was formed at 
a meeting in the Mechanics Hall in 1917 and the fi re 
station was erected in 1919 by public subscription. 
The building was designed by local architect L.J. 
Flanagan and built by local builder Thomas Green. 
Volunteers were summoned by a bell erected on a 
tower on the left hand side of the building. The design 
of this two-bay building was so well thought of by the 
Country Fire Brigade Board that they adopted it as 
the standard for 
all country fi re 
stations.
It remained the 
premises of 
the Mornington 
Fire Brigade 
until 1969 when 
a new station 
was built near 
Elizabeth Street.

8

Reels and ladder fire ready



Mornington Chamber of  Commerce

Main St Mornington

OLD FIRE STATION 
137 Main Street
The Mornington Urban Fire Brigade was formed at 
a meeting in the Mechanics Hall in 1917 and the fi re 
station was erected in 1919 by public subscription. 
The building was designed by local architect L.J. 
Flanagan and built by local builder Thomas Green. 
Volunteers were summoned by a bell erected on a 
tower on the left hand side of the building. The design 
of this two-bay building was so well thought of by the 
Country Fire Brigade Board that they adopted it as 
the standard for 
all country fi re 
stations.
It remained the 
premises of 
the Mornington 
Fire Brigade 
until 1969 when 
a new station 
was built near 
Elizabeth Street.

8

Mornington competing in Fire Games



Mornington & District Historical Society

Heritage Walk

PLAZA CAFE 
115 Main Street (plaque is inside 115 Cafe Bar)

This cafe was established in the early 1930s next 
door to the Plaza Theatre (now demolished), 
which had relocated from the Mechanics Hall to 
the new cinema building. An advertisement in The 
Peninsula Post invited customers: “When you are at 
the Pictures these cold nights, dash into Waller’s for a 
hot malted milk or a hot Beefi ne (beef tea). Price 6d.
Our pies are known all 
over the Peninsula”.

The cafe took 
bookings for the 
Theatre which 
was also used for 
dances and other 
entertainments.
At one time an 
estate agent 
occupied this shop.
The original 
moulded metal 
ceiling has been 
retained.

9Plaza cafe

l 

Plaza cinema was set back from street
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Mornington Chamber of  Commerce

Main St Mornington

10 BRADFORD 
DAIRY 

79/81 Main Street
A dairy occupied this site 
in the early 1900s. In 1928, 
E.G. ‘Barney’ Bradford, a 
First World War veteran, 
bought the business 
from the Sherlock 
brothers, calling 
it “Pines” Dairy, 
delivering milk in 
Mornington and 
Mt Martha.
In 1936 he renovated 
the building which still retains some of the original 
art deco details in the tiling, the metal window 
frames and the decoration on the parapet. He 
continued his business until 1950.
As you continue down the street, you will also notice 
a water fountain in Empire Mall. This was relocated 
to Empire Mall from the entrance to Mornington 
Park at the end of Main Street. This was given to 
the township as a gift in 1924 by Jane Balcombe 
Murphy in memory of her father, Alexander 
Balcombe of the Briars.

Balcombe Fountain originally at the entrance to Mornington Park

Barney Bradford WWI
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Mornington & District Historical Society

Heritage Walk

LIVERY & COACHING STABLES 
65 Main Street
These stables offered a coach and carrying service 
to the rest of the Peninsula. The business evolved 
during the 1920s into a motor garage as cars began 
to replace the horse and cart. From the rear the 
original roof and back wall of this galvanised iron 
building are still to be seen.
A grocery store was later built on part of the site 
which Bill Pratt subsequently converted to 
Mornington’s fi rst self-service grocery store in the 
1950s after 
a visit to 
the Unit-
ed States. 
Pratts stores 
later be-
came the 
Safeway 
supermar-
ket chain in 
Australia.

 

G. Daw & Son 1913 11
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Mornington Chamber of  Commerce

Main St Mornington

Allchin’s store c1900 – 45 to 47 Main St

ORIENTAL BANK & 
ALLCHIN’S STORE 

Pioneer resident Thomas Allchin constructed this 
building with bricks made from his clay pit on the 
lower corner of his Sutton Grange Estate. He leased 
the building to The Oriental Bank which traded there 
from 1875 to 1880. 
The building was later 
converted into retail 
premises becoming 
Herb Dickinson’s The 
Point Furnishing store 
in 1923 and then The 
Point Hardware store 
for many years. The 
building now reveals little of its former appearance 
except for the characteristic splayed corner and 
rectangular upper level double-hung windows.
On the opposite corner is the site of Allchin’s store 
which Thomas Allchin began in 1859, adding a 
second storey in 1872. It grew to become a major 
general store run by his wife Sarah. Goods were 
brought from Melbourne by Allchin’s ketches Maggie 
and Governor Latrobe.
Following the Allchins, it was run in succession by 
Nunn, Higgs, Doult and then Fyffe before fi nally 
becoming Croagh’s delicatessen. 
The building was demolished to make way for the 
Commonwealth Bank in the early 1960s.

Oriental Bank – 51 Main Street

12

Thomas Allchin
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Mornington & District Historical Society

Heritage Walk

MALES BUTCHERY AND THE 
HAIRDRESSERS 
39 Main Street
Built in the late 1800s, this was one of several butchers 
shops in the town. First occupied by James Smith 
Adams, it was purchased by Tom Male in 1918. The 
Male family owned the business for over 30 years. 
They had a slaughter-yard in Bentons Rd, Moorooduc.
Behind the shop were stables as deliveries were 
made by horse and cart. The shop front of plate 
glass windows was surrounded by tiles on which 
‘Male’ was moulded. The sign ‘Butcher’ painted 
originally on the external brick wall can still be seen 
in the adjacent shop (No. 41).
The adjoining building (No 43) was added in 1934 
by Tom Male to enable his friend Alf Sexton to 
continue his hairdressing business. It has continued 
to operate for 
more than 70 
years, making 
it the oldest 
continuing retail 
business in 
Mornington. 

13

Duncan Forrester
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Mornington Chamber of  Commerce

Main St Mornington

COTTAGE/BILLIARD ROOM/
SHOPS 

37 Main Street
This cottage is the 
last remnant of its 
type and was used 
as both a business 
and a residence. 
For many years 
Alf Sexton ran his 
hairdressers here before 
moving next door to Males 
Butcher shop. The building at 
the rear was a billiard room.
The shops (Nos. 27-35) in this 
section of Main Street were 
built in the late 1920s and 
early 1930s. Some still have 
period fi xtures such as ornate 
ceilings, remains of pressed 
metal ceilings, stained glass 
features, and wooden fl oors.
If you turn left into Queen 
Street, you will reach St. 
Peters Church which was 
built in 1861. Inside there are 
some lovely stained glass 
windows dedicated to Mornington people and families. 
Returning to Main Street….

14

Former Billiard room

St. Peters 
Church
3 Queen Street

The billiard room at the rear of the cottage
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One of the friezes in these 1930s shops
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metal ceilings, stained glass 
features, and wooden fl oors.
If you turn left into Queen 
Street, you will reach St. 
Peters Church which was 
built in 1861. Inside there are 
some lovely stained glass 
windows dedicated to Mornington people and families. 
Returning to Main Street….
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MECHANIC’S INSTITUTE
& RSL CLUB 
Corner of Queen and Main Streets
Designed by Thomas Watts & Sons, The Mechanics 
Institute building was funded from public subscriptions 
and opened New Year’s Eve 1885. It comprised a large 
hall for up to 300 people, a reading room and a library. 
For over 70 years the Mechanics Hall, as it was popularly 
called, was the cultural and entertainment centre for the 
Mornington community, where public meetings, concerts, 
theatricals and dances took place. It was also the town’s 
picture theatre for many years until The Plaza was 
opened in the 1930s. In 1962 it was turned into the Shire 
Offi ces and only the façade remains.
The adjacent Mornington Memorial building was built 
in 1922 for the local branch of the Returned Soldiers 
League with money raised from the public in memory of 
those who had fallen in the First World War.

You will notice the Westminster Bollard. 
The bollard was originally located at 
the top of the steps which led down to 
the River Thames from Millbank Prison, 
from where convicts would start their 
transportation to Australia. This was 
presented to the Mornington Shire to 
commemorate its centenary in 1993 by 
the City of Westminster, London.
It should be noted that Victoria and 
Mornington were settled by free citizens.
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Main St Mornington

FEDERAL HOUSE 
13 Main Street
Built in the late 1880s, the Federal Cash Store was 
run for many years by Robert Nunn, selling groceries, 
wines and spirits. The building also included a 
bakery. There was a residence above with a fi ne 
wrought iron verandah. Robert Nunn was a highly- 
regarded businessman who became Shire President. 
Subsequently the store was converted into a guest 
house to meet the burgeoning holiday trade. 
In the early 1940s, it was advertised as a boarding 
house but also catered for weddings and offered 
meals. Bungalows were added in the back garden 
and the lounge on the fi rst fl oor was also used as 
a meeting room. In 1949 as New Federal House it 

still maintained its original 
facade. In the 1950s it 
became The Federal Cafe.
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OLD POST OFFICE 
Corner of Main Street and Esplanade
Designed by William Wardell in Palladian Italian 
Renaissance style in polychrome brick and now 
covered with a cement render, it was built in 1863/4. 
Originally this fi ne building had a gabled entry porch 
and small verandah on its west-facing wall. Inside is 
the original expansive wooden counter and fi replace 
and other fi ttings. 
The building replaced the original telegraph offi ce 
which had been opened in 1861. The mail arrived 
from Melbourne by boat and was brought up from 
the pier by horse and cart to be sorted. Mornington’s 
fi rst telephone 
exchange opened 
in this building 
in 1905. 
The Post Offi ce 
was transferred 
to new premises 
in 1963/64. This 
building was 
reopened in 1968 
as a museum, exhibiting many 
objects tracing the history of the Mornington district 
as well as postal and communications memorabilia. 

Posted in 1857 from Schnapper Point (Mornington), Victoria

Post Offi ce Mornington, 1910
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STATE SAVINGS BANK 
787 Esplanade
The bank and residence was built by J.C. Caldwell 
in Swiss chalet style and completed in 1912. 
Electric lighting was installed in 1923 .
The State Savings Bank was known as “The Farmers 
Bank” as it became a key source of farm fi nance, 
which was important for the largely rural community 
of the Peninsula. In 1954 the Bank moved to new 
premises in Main Street. It has been occupied by a 
variety of businesses including the fi rst offi ces of the 
Mornington Crime Investigation Unit in 1977. 
Much of the original interior is preserved, including 
the pressed metal ceilings and the old fi replaces.
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Close to Main Street are the following buildings 
and monuments of historical signifi cance which 
you might also like to visit:

Former St. Andrew’s 
Presbyterian Church (1867)
Now a restaurant
cnr. Barkly St.
and Waterloo Place

Memorial Park
Commemorating those
who served in all wars,
cnr Barkly St. and Empire St. 

The Toy Library
An old cottage, 
Albert St.

The Vicarage (1863)
Now private property Cnr. 
Ross St. and Drake St.

The Monument to the 
Football Disaster (1892)
Cnr. Esplanade and 
Schnapper Point Drive

Mornington Park
With Avenue of Honour, 
Matthew Flinders statue 
and Band Pavilion

Other Notable Sights

Mornington & District Historical Society
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